
6.11.12_Council_Minutes 1

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JUNE 11, 2012 – 7:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Connors called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Alderman Tolar. 
 
Roll Call.  Present: Aldermen Hougen, Wall, Mott, Hill, Kehoe, Kupsik, Krohn and Tolar. Also present: Administrator 
Jordan, City Attorney Draper and City Clerk Hawes. 
 
Awards, Presentations, and Proclamations.  
Mayor Connors congratulated the public safety personnel who received awards at the Lake Geneva Fire Department 
Awards Ceremony on June 7, 2012. City Clerk Hawes announced the names of the award recipients. 
 
Mayor Connors thanked City staff for all their hard work with the recall election on June 5th. 
 
Mayor Connors announced that the Town of Delavan and City of Delavan are jointly holding an event on June 13th and 
June 14th in tribute to those who lost their lives in defense of our Country. The event is titled “Celebration of Freedom” 
and will take place at the Community Park in Delavan. 
 
Re-consider business from previous meeting.  None. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes.  
Terry O’Neill, 954 George Street, Lake Geneva, addressed the Council to speak about item #11, establishing a consent 
agenda for Council meetings. He asked that the items of the consent agenda be listed on the regular agenda and read 
aloud at Council meetings before being acted on. Mr. O’Neill also spoke about item #12D, regarding the amendment 
to the Traffic Signal Design contract. He expressed cocnern with spending money on the initial study and design work 
when the construction has not yet been approved. 
 
Sam Frederickson, 1740 Summit Drive, Lake Geneva, addressed the Council on behalf of the Cemetery Commission 
to talk about item #12B on the agenda. Mr. Frederickson asked the Council to approve funding for a new cemetery 
truck. He commented on the condition of the cemetery’s two current trucks and said that the 1995 truck is in need of 
replacing. Mr. Frederickson explained the cemetery’s need for more than one truck, stating that one truck is usually 
used for leaf or snow removal while the other is used for burials. He said it would be difficult for the Cemetery 
Commission and Street Department to share equipment because they each have their own service needs to take care of 
at the same time.  
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence. 
City Clerk Hawes reported the City received a letter from Marian Tolar on behalf of the Oak Hill Cemetery 
Commission dated May 2012. The letter states that the Cemetery Commission does not support opening the Pioneer 
Cemetery to the public on a 24-hour basis for a six month period. 
 
The City received a letter from Duanne Lafrenz, President of the Lake Geneva Public Library Board, dated June 1, 
2012, asking the Council to consider establishing safe and accessible parking for library employees. 
 
The City received a letter from Joe Cardiff, Executive Director of the Lake Geneva Economic Development 
Corporation, dated June 4, 2012, expressing support for renovating the Geneva Theater and establishing it as a cultural 
arts center. 
 
The City received an e-mail from Ruth Hackman of Aerial Stunt Kites, 121 Wrigley Dr., Lake Geneva, discussing the 
importance of beach water sampling procedures and the need to keep swimmers safe. 
 



6.11.12_Council_Minutes 2

City Clerk Hawes said that copies of correspondence were distributed to the Mayor and Council members and are on 
file in the City Clerk’s office. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Kupsik/Kehoe motion to approve the Regular City Council Meeting minutes of May 29, 2012, as published and 
distributed.  Unanimously carried. 
 
Public Hearing on the extension of the General Development Plan (GDP) for the North Gate Retail Center 
planned development filed by KC Northgate, LLC (continued 5/29/12) 
Jim Howe approached the Council as the attorney representing KC Northgate LLC. Mr. Howe explained that in 
October 2007 the Council approved the General Development Plan (GDP) for the North Gate Retail Center planned 
development. He reported that a bank was successfully built during the first phase of the project. The Council recently 
approved the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) for the second phase, which will be an auto parts store. Mr. Howe said 
the third phase is planned to be a mix of office and commercial, however the pieces aren’t together yet to proceed with 
this phase. He said his client is requesting an extension of the GDP because the third phase of the project is not ready. 
Alderman Kehoe asked how long of an extension they are requesting. Mr. Howe said extensions are traditionally 
granted for five year periods. 
 
Michael Keefe, owner of KC Northgate LLC, stated that the potential tenants for the commercial/office space are not 
known at this time. He said that extending the GDP will help ensure that the zoning is in place to attract tenants. 
Alderman Hougen asked if there is infrastructure in place for the project. Mr. Keefe indicated the infrastructure is set 
and they just need tenants at this time. 
 
Kupsik/Wall motion to close the public hearing.  Unanimously carried. Mayor Connors noted the discussion and action 
of the item would be on the next Council agenda. 
 
Discussion/Action on establishing designated Library staff parking 
Mayor Connors said there have been multiple discussions on options for providing parking for library staff, such as 
permits for lots and permits for street parking. He said it is up to this body to make a decision. 
 
Wall/Kupsik motion to provide parking permits for library employees to use during their shift to park in the Cook 
Street parking lot, provided that they are able to find parking in the lot, and to direct the City Attorney to amend the 
ordinances as necessary. Alderman Wall said this proposal has been thoroughly discussed. He said it is the right thing 
to do because they are City employees and they deserve parking just like other City employees. Alderman Hill 
expressed concern that this solution wasn’t more thoroughly reviewed. 
 
Wall/Kupsik motion to suspend the rules and allow Library Director Peterson to approach the Council. Unanimously 
carried. Ms. Peterson said the library has a total of 17 employees. At the most, the library has 13 employees working at 
one time. During the remaining hours, there are 9-12 employees working. Mayor Connors asked how library staff 
found parking in previous years. Ms. Peterson said that staff parked on Madison Street, or wherever they could find 
street parking. She stated that now it is a matter of cost for the library employees. Now that parking fees have been 
raised to $1.00 per hour, this is a considerable cost for staff who make minimum wage. Alderman Hill asked if this is a 
seasonal issue. Ms. Peterson said parking is an issue year-round for library employees, but it intensifies during the 
summer. 
 
Administrator Jordan said the library could be issued permits similar to those that are issued to businesses that park in 
the Cook Street lot. He stated these permits are good to park in the lot, as long as there is parking available. If no 
parking is available in the lot, then they need to pay for parking on the street or find a different solution. Alderman 
Kehoe suggested reserving 12 spaces for library staff in the Central-Dennison school parking lot. Mayor Connors 
expressed concern with providing designated parking spots because they could go underutilized during hours that the 
library is closed. 
 
Alderman Hill talked about the issue of safety for library employees who walk to their car at night. She said there are 
multiple options for providing safe measures for parking, such as a buddy system or police escorts. 
 



6.11.12_Council_Minutes 3

City Attorney Draper said the ordinances may need to be amended to reflect the addition of the library staff parking 
permit. 
  
Roll Call: Hougen, Wall, Kehoe, Kupsik and Tolar voted “yes.” Mott, Hill and Krohn voted “no.” Motion carried by 
vote of 5 to 3. 
 
*Clerk’s Note: It was determined after the meeting that the library staff permit was a matter of internal policy and it 
would not need to be reflected in the Municipal Code. 
 
Second Reading of Ordinance 12-12, amending Section 2-42 of the Municipal Code to add a consent agenda to 
the City Council order of business 
Kupsik/Mott motion to approve. Alderman Kupsik said this topic was discussed at previous Council and Committee of 
the Whole meetings. He said the consent agenda would help move Council meetings along. Mayor Connors indicated 
that all of the items on the consent agenda would be listed on the regular agenda. Any member of the Council can pull 
something off of the consent agenda for discussion without requiring a motion. 
 
Roll Call: Hougen, Wall, Mott, Hill, Kehoe, Kupsik, Krohn and Tolar voted “yes.” Unanimously carried. 
 
Finance, License and Regulation Committee Recommendations – Alderman Hill 
 
LICENSES AND PERMITS 
 
Original “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License Application for 
Popeye’s Galley & Grog, Ltd. d/b/a Popeye’s Galley & Grog, 811 Wrigley Dr., Lake Geneva, Michael Anagnos, 
Agent 
Hill/Kupsik motion to approve, contingent upon issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to allow serving of alcohol in 
the parking lot area. Alderman Hill said the applicant is in the process of changing its corporate name from Anagnos 
Enterprises to Popeye’s Galley & Grog. As such, they are required to submit new alcohol license paperwork. The 
change would take effect at the start of the new license year on July 1, 2012. She indicated the application includes the 
parking lot dining area as part of its licensed premises. She said the applicant is in the process of applying for the 
Conditional Use Permit necessary to have this dining area. Unanimously carried. 
 
Amendment to Park Permit Application filed by Sherm Lindsey on behalf of Midwest Action Cycle/Vespa Club 
of America for “Amerivespa Motor Scooter Rally” event at Flat Iron Park, on June 22-23, 2012 to allow a food 
vendor (gelato only) (recommended by Board of Park Commissioners 6/6/12) 
Hill/Mott motion to approve. Alderman Hill said the Board of Park Commissioners originally allowed the applicant to 
have vendors to sell scooter related products and goods. The applicant has come back to request having vendors to sell 
food and beverages. The Board of Park Commissioners reviewed this request and recommended allowing the sale of 
gelato only. Alderman Kupsik noted this recommendation was made to prevent food vendors from competing with 
downtown restaurants. Alderman Wall said he takes issue with it needing to be a local vendor. Alderman Hill said it 
came down to a timing issue and the applicant didn’t know how specific the request needed to be. Motion carried by 
vote of 7 to 1, with Alderman Kehoe opposed. 
 
Original 2012-2013 Operator License applications filed by: Christine A. Purich, William R. Dazell, Joy Hudson, 
Allie N. Fleming, Todd D. O’Brien, Lyn-Ann M. Polk, Tiffany L. Fish, Jared J. Murphy, Deborah L. Nowak, 
Tetyana U. Hynd, Michael Solus, Justin M. Harris and Charles Andrew Fritz IV 
Hill/Tolar motion to approve. Unanimously carried. 
 
Discussion/Action on purchase of one-ton dump truck with dump box, plow and salter for the cemetery 
Hill/Kupsik motion to instruct staff to solicit bids for the purchase of a one-ton truck for the cemetery. Alderman Hill 
said she was the lone no vote on the Finance, License and Regulation Committee. She said she was ultimately 
uncomfortable for the request not being a formal part of the 2012 budget process. Ms. Hill stated she agrees the 
cemetery needs a truck but does not think it’s urgent enough at this time. Alderman Kehoe agreed that the request 
should be part of the budget process, which begins again in a couple of months. 
 



6.11.12_Council_Minutes 4

Alderman Wall asked why there has to be separate equipment for the cemetery and the street department. Alderman 
Krohn said these are separate entities with separate manpower, and that’s the way it’s always been. Alderman Hougen 
said it would make sense to have a capital improvement program that is handled in a way that gives each department 
an equal chance for capital requests. Alderman Krohn said the cemetery has been overlooked for many years with 
regard to the cemetery truck request. She said the Council spent $1 million on a fire truck that wasn’t needed. 
Alderman Hougen agreed it was an oversight to not purchase the cemetery truck. 
 
Roll Call: Hougen, Mott, Kupsik, Krohn and Tolar voted “yes.” Wall, Hill and Kehoe voted “no.” Motion carried by 
vote of 5 to 3. 
 
Discussion/Action on disallowance of claim filed by Barbara Fukal for expenses relating to a slip and fall 
incident on the 200 block of Broad Street, pursuant to Wis. Stats. 893.80 (1g) 
City Attorney Draper reported that the City’s insurance carrier investigated the claim and found that there was no 
negligence on the City’s part. He said the insurance carrier is recommending disallowance of the claim. He suggested 
the Council follow this recommendation. 
 
Kupsik/Mott motion to disallow the claim filed by Barbara Fukal for expenses relating to a slip and fall incident on the 
200 block of Broad Street. Unanimously carried. 
 
Discussion/Action on amendment to design contract with Crispell-Snyder for Main Street Traffic Signal design 
contract 
Hill/Kupsik motion to approve. Alderman Hill said there was significant discussion about this contract amendment at 
the Finance, License and Regulation Committee. She said the purpose of the amendment is to incorporate the project 
changes that were recently approved by the City Council. Ms. Hill said the City would be charged $4,000 to $6,000 for 
the design changes. Alderman Wall asked if staff knew in advance whether there would be increases to the cost of the 
design contract due to the changes. Administrator Jordan said staff was not surprised about the increases once the 
Council made changes to major components of the project. He said he expects there to be significant cost savings over 
the course of the project compared to the original specifications. Alderman Hill suggested that at future committee 
meetings there be closer attention to costs. Mayor Connors read each of the changes that would be made to the design 
contract. 
 
Roll Call: Hougen, Wall, Mott, Hill, Kupsik and Tolar voted “yes.” Kehoe and Krohn voted “no.” Motion carried by 
vote of 6 to 2. 
 
Presentation of Accounts 
Hill/Kupsik motion to approve Prepaid Bills in the amount of $7,249.01. Unanimously carried. 
 
Hill/Wall motion to approve Regular Bills in the amount of $178,118.18. Unanimously carried. 
 
Mayoral Appointments – Mayor Connors 
 
Appointment of Don Forbes to the Avian Committee for a term expiring May 1, 2014 
 
Hill/Mott motion to approve. Unanimously carried. 
 
Adjournment 
Kehoe/Hill motion to adjourn at 8:36pm. Unanimously carried. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 
/s/ Michael D. Hawes, City Clerk 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 



6.11.12_Council_Minutes 5

 
 
 


